
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020) came into force on Saturday 4 April 2020 to enable 
councils to hold remote committee meetings during the 
Covid 19 pandemic period.  This is to ensure local authorities 
can conduct business during this current public health 
emergency. 
 
This meeting will be held remotely under these regulations, 
via the Zoom application and will be webcast to ensure 
accessibility by the public and press. 

Please ask for: 
Gurdip Paddan 

 
16 March 2021 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL to be held on Wednesday 24 March 2021 at 
7.30 pm via Zoom. 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Panel Members made in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To note any apologies. 
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 January 2021 
(previously circulated). 
 

Public Document Pack



4.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 7 
AND ANY ITEMS WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA  
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda. 
 

6.   47 HOWICKS GREEN, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL7 4RJ - 6/2020/2307/EM - 
SINGLE STOREY FRONT EXTENSION TO REPLACE EXISTING PORCH 
CANOPY AND EXTERNAL CUPBOARD (Pages 5 - 26) 
 

 The report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
sets out an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management (EM) Consent for the 
erection of a single storey front extension which would replace an existing porch 
canopy and external cupboard. 
 

7.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

8.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for items 9 and 10 (if any) on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information 
as defined in Section 100A(3) and Paragraphs 5 (privileged and legal advice) and 
6 (statutory notice or order) Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended). 
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.     
 
 

PART II 
 

9.   UPDATE ON OUTSTANDING ENFORCEMENT CASES AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE TERMS OF 
THE SCHEME OF MANAGEMENT FOR WELWYN GARDEN CITY FOR 
BREACHES OF THAT SCHEME (Pages 27 - 32) 
 

 Exempt report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and 
Governance) updating Panel Members with regard to outstanding arbitration cases 
that had been put before the Panel as well as additional cases for consideration. 
 

10.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
 



 
Circulation: Councillors H.Bower (Chairman) 

A.Chesterman 
M.Cowan 
B.Fitzsimon 
 

F.Marsh 
L.Musk 
F.Thomson 
 

 Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Gurdip 
Paddan, Governance Services on 01707 357467 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Part I 
Main author: James Homer 
Executive Member: Cllr Stephen Boulton 
Howlands Ward 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ESTATE MANAGEMENT APPEALS PANEL – 24 MARCH 2021 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 

GOVERNANCE)  
  

6/2020/2307/EM 

47 HOWICKS GREEN, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL7 4RJ  

SINGLE STOREY FRONT EXTENSION TO REPLACE EXISTING PORCH CANOPY AND 

EXTERNAL CUPBOARD  

APPLICANT: Ms. E. Grzeskowiak 

1  Background  

1.1  This appeal is against the refusal of Estate Management Consent for the erection 

of a single storey front extension which would replace an existing porch canopy 

and external cupboard. The application was refused on the 8 October 2020 for the 

following reason:   

           “The proposed extension would result in a large addition to the front of the property 

that would disrupt the planned design and layout of the properties within Howicks 

Green. By extending beyond the dimensions of the current porch and store 

cupboard, the proposed extension would have a detrimental impact upon the 

property and wider street scene. The introduction of a circular window is not in 

keeping with the immediate area and would have a detrimental impact upon the 

property. As a result, the application would fail to comply with Policy EM1 of the 

Estate Management Scheme.” 
 

2  Site Description  

2.1  No.47 is a two storey terraced house located upon the southern side of Howicks 

Green. The properties in Howicks Green are of similar design and characterised by 

open porches with brick built storage cupboards located to either the left or right of 

the front door. 

3  The Proposal  

3.1   The application sought Estate Management Scheme consent to erect a single storey 

front extension following the removal of an existing porch canopy and external 

cupboard.  

4  Relevant Estate Management History  

4.1  Application number: 6/2020/0448/EM 
 Proposal: Erection of a single storey front extension 
 Decision: Refused (due to size and design) 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 

    

5 Representations Received 

5.1 None.   

6 Policy  

6.1 Estate Management Scheme Policies (October 2008): 

  EM1 – Extensions and alterations   

7  Discussion  

  

7.1  It should be noted that the associated planning application was also refused but 

allowed on appeal on 1 February 2020. 

 

7.2 This is an appeal against the refusal of Estate Management Scheme consent to 

erect a single storey front extension following the removal of an existing porch 

canopy and external cupboard. The appellant’s appeal documents are attached 

at Appendix 1 and 2, and the delegated officer’s report for application 

6/2020/2307/EM is attached at Appendix 3.  
  

7.3      The key issue in the determination of this appeal is the impact the proposed 

extension would have on the character and appearance of the appeal site and 

the surrounding area.  
  

7.4     All applications to the Estate Management Scheme are assessed against the 

current policies relevant to the proposals. In this case, the application was 

assessed against Policy EM1.  Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme 

states that extensions and alterations to existing properties will only be allowed if 

they are in keeping with the design, appearance, materials and architectural 

detailing used in the existing building and do not have a detrimental impact on 

the amenities and values of the surrounding area or the residential amenity of 

adjoining occupiers.  
  

7.5  The appeal property is a mid-terraced house located upon the southern side of 

Howicks Green. The properties in Howicks Green are of similar design and 

characterised by open porches with brick built storage cupboards located to 

either the left or right of the front door. 

 

7.6 The application sought Estate Management Scheme consent to erect a single storey 

front extension following the removal of an existing porch canopy and external 

cupboard. The proposed extension would have an approximate depth of 1.2m and an 

approximate width of 4.3m. The proposed extension would feature a flat roof and 

have an approximate height of 2.8m. A part glazed, part solid door, similar to the 

existing front door, and glazed side panel would be sited to the left of centre. A high 

level circular window is positioned to the right of centre. 

7.7      Despite a small reduction to the width from the earlier refused application 

(6/2020/0448/EM) the extension remains substantially larger and would extend 

beyond the limits of the existing porch and store. In addition, the proposed porch 

is approx. 40cm higher than the roof of the existing canopy. Although there are 

Page 6



 

examples of circular windows on the front elevations of nearby houses, they are 

not typical of properties within Howicks Green and would be contrast to other 

properties where the side door is removed and replaced with a window of 

dimensions to match other windows within the property. Front porches in 

Howicks Green that have Estate Management Consent are smaller and do not 

extend to the width of this proposal (e.g. follow the width of the existing canopy 

and store). The proposed extension would alter the relationship within the 

terrace and would have a detrimental impact upon the values and amenities of 

the property and street scene of Howicks Green.  

 

7.8 To support their appeal the appellant has produced a presentation of other 

homes in the area that have front extensions. The appellant highlights the 

extensions within Howicks Green and states that they took precedent from front 

extensions located along Howlands. The highlighted examples are:  

 240 Howlands – The front extension at this property is similar in 

dimensions and design as that proposed at 47 Howicks Green. The 

extension was judged to not detrimental to the property or street scene 

and received Estate Management Scheme consent in 2019 

(6/2019/0555/EM). 

 227 Howlands – The extension at this property is similar in dimensions as 

that proposed at 47 Howicks Green. However, the photographs show a 

pitched roof which is contrary to the approved design which received 

Estate Management Scheme consent in 2017 (6/2017/2540/EM). 

 239 Howlands – The front extension at this property is considerably 

smaller (1.6m less width) than that proposed at 47 Howicks Green and of 

a different design in that it is centrally positioned across the front door. 

The extension received Estate Management Scheme consent in 2003 

(W6/2003/0157/EM). 

 1 Howicks Green – This house is of a similar design to the application site 

however, the front extension at this property is considerably smaller. The 

extension incorporates the area utilised by the external store but does not 

extend over the side access door. However, the door has been removed 

and a window of matching dimensions and design as existing has been 

installed. The extension received Estate Management Scheme consent in 

2018 (6/2020/0376/EM). 

 52 Howicks Green – Like no.1, this house is of a similar design to the 

application site however, the front extension at this property is 

considerably smaller. The extension incorporates the area utilised by the 

external store but does not extend over the side access door. However, 

the door has been removed and a window of matching dimensions and 

design as existing has been installed. The extension received Estate 

Management Scheme consent in 2017 (6/2017/0147/EM). 

 

7.9 Although there are examples of larger front extensions along Howlands which 

are close to Howicks Green, the existing approved extensions within Howicks 

Green are smaller and reflect the dimensions of the original covered porches 

and external cupboards. By extending beyond the dimensions of the current 

porch and store cupboard, the proposed extension would have a detrimental 

impact upon the property and wider street scene. 

 

Page 7



 

7.10 The appellant states that, following the earlier refusal, they changed the design 

to incorporate a circular window which has been used within the front extensions 

along Howlands and identified above. The appellant states that the circular 

window is a characteristic feature of Welwyn Garden City architecture and is a 

holistic approach to the design and in line with the wider street scene within the 

Garden City. It is acknowledged that circular windows are a relatively common 

feature within the Estate Management Scheme area, however, they are not a 

design feature of Howicks Green and it is considered out of keeping within the 

street scene.    

   

8  Conclusion   

  

8.1  Although the appellant has demonstrated the addition of larger extensions 

outside of Howicks Green, the extensions within Howicks Green are smaller and 

reflect the dimensions of the original covered porches and cupboards. As a 

result, the planned design and layout of the street is maintained without 

detrimental harm to Howicks Green. By extending beyond the dimensions of the 

current porch and store cupboard, the proposed extension would have a 

detrimental impact upon the property and wider street scene. The introduction of 

a circular window is not in keeping with the immediate area and would have a 

detrimental impact upon the property. It is considered that no additional 

evidence or information has been submitted by the appellant which would alter 

the officer’s recommendation. The original application and appeal, therefore, fail 

to comply with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme. 

 

9  Recommendation  

  

9.1  That Members uphold the delegated decision and dismiss the appeal.  
 

 

 

James Homer (Estate Management Scheme Manager)  

Date: 11 March 2021 

  

Background Information  

Appendix 1: Appellant’s Statement 

Appendix 2: Appellant’s Presentation 

Appendix 3: Original delegated officer’s report 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Catherine Gooding-Williams

From: Karol Grzeskowiak 

Sent: 01 November 2020 10:16

To: Planning

Cc: Ewa Grzeskowiak

Subject: 6/2020/2307/EMH Appeal

Attachments: 47 Howicks Green Extension - Precedents.pdf

** WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra 
vigilant when opening attachments or clicking links ** 
. 
Dear Colin Haigh,

RE: Application No 6/2020/2307/EMH Appeal Letter

I am writing to you in order to appeal against a recent refusal for a ‘single storey front extension to replace existing 
porch canopy and external cupboard’ on the basis outlined below. 

I hope that with this further evidence our proposed design can be understood as a positive addition to our 
neighbourhood and home, and hope that you can approve its build. 

Reasons for refusal, as stated in the refusal letter:

1. The size of the extension;
2. The introduction of the circular window.

Response:
Regarding point 1, the size, in the last couple of years a number of extensions similar to the one that we propose 
have been approved and built as additions to homes of exactly the same architectural style as ours, no more than 
200m away from our house. We have compiled a presentation that shows the current condition of our house, along 
with a selection of front extensions we have found in our surrounding neighbourhood. We have also included the 
drawings of our proposed extension to show that our proposal is not any different than the other extensions 
approved and built in the surrounding area. Please find attached a link to the presentation, outlining the 
aforementioned front extensions surrounding 47 Howicks Green.

The presentation illustrates the fact that our proposed extension is not the first of this nature at Howicks Green and 
Howlands as a whole, and would not have the detrimental impact upon the property and wider street scene, as the 
wider street scene has already adapted the same stylistic and architectural changes elsewhere. Howicks Green alone 
already contains two extensions that are similar in size and style. Furthermore, 3 close-by houses, architecturally the 
same, on the main street that leads to Howicks Green - far busier and more exposed to the public street - have a 
front extension, each 1.25m deep or more. The proposed depth of our extension is 1.2m which is less than that. Two 
of those are of comparable width to our proposed extension. We took precedent from those extensions while 
designing ours, and therefore understand that the proposed size and shape are proportional and comply with the 
Estate Management Policies.  

Regarding point 2, the circular window has been introduced as a response to the previous refusal letter. The circular 
window has been used in the two larger front extensions near our house and is one of the most characteristic 
features of Welwyn Garden City’s vernacular architecture. The use of the circular window therefore takes on a more 
holistic approach to design, in line with the wider street scene of Welwyn Garden City as a whole, as per the Estate 
Management Scheme. Please refer to the aforementioned presentation as well as the architectural design of 
Howlands for reference. 

I am happy to discuss this design further together in due course. I appreciate your consideration and look forward to 
hearing from you soon.

Page 11



Kind regards, 

Karol Grzeskowiak

To help protect your privacy, 
Microsoft Office prevented 
automatic download of this  
picture from the Internet.

Virus-free. www.avast.com

Page 12



2.

4.

3.

1.

1. 47 Howicks Green
2. Properties to the left of 47 Howicks Green 
3. Properties to the right of 47 Howicks Green 
4. Properties at the front of 47 Howicks Green 

47 HOWICKS GREEN – EXISTING CONDITION

P
age 13



1. 240 Howlands
2. 227 Howlands
3. 239 Howlands
4. 1 Howicks Green
5. 52 Howicks Green

2.

1.

3. 4.

5.

EXISTING FRONT EXTENSIONS NEAR 47 HOWICKS GREEN (1/7)

P
age 14



1. 2. 3.

4. . 5.

EXISTING FRONT EXTENSIONS NEAR 47 HOWICKS GREEN (2/7)

1. 240 Howlands
2. 227 Howlands
3. 239 Howlands
4. 1 Howicks Green
5. 52 Howicks Green

P
age 15



EXISTING FRONT EXTENSIONS NEAR 47 HOWICKS GREEN (3/7)

240 Howlands
Depth of the front extension: Approx. 1.5m
Width of the front extension: Approx. 4.2m

P
age 16



EXISTING FRONT EXTENSIONS NEAR 47 HOWICKS GREEN (4/7)

227 Howlands
Depth of the front extension: 1.25m
Width of the front extension: Approx. 4.2m

P
age 17



EXISTING FRONT EXTENSIONS NEAR 47 HOWICKS GREEN (5/7)

239 Howlands
Depth of the front extension: 1.25m
Width of the front extension: Approx. 2.5m

P
age 18



EXISTING FRONT EXTENSIONS NEAR 47 HOWICKS GREEN (6/7)

1 Howicks Green
Depth of the front extension: 1m
Width of the front extension: Approx. 2.5m

P
age 19



EXISTING FRONT EXTENSIONS NEAR 47 HOWICKS GREEN (7/7)

52 Howicks Green
Depth of the front extension: 1m
Width of the front extension: Approx. 2.5m

P
age 20



FRONT EXTENSION FOR 47 HOWICKS GREEN – REVISED PROPOSAL 

Depth of the proposed front extension: 1.2m

Width of the proposed front extension: 4.4mP
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - PLANNING, PUBLIC PROTECTION AND GOVERNANCE 

 

D ELEGATED APPLICATION 
 

 
Application No: 6/2020/2307/EMH 

Location: 47 Howicks Green Welwyn Garden City AL7 4RJ 

Proposal: Single storey front extension to replace existing porch canopy and 

external cupboard. 

Officer: Mr James Homer 
 

R ecommendation: R efused 
 

6/2020/2307/EMH 

Context 

Site and 

Application 

description 

No.47 is a two storey terraced house located upon the southern side of 

Howicks Green. The properties in Howicks Green are of similar design and 

characterised by open porches with brick built storage cupboards located to 

either the left or right of the front door. 

 
The application proposes the erection of a single storey front extension to 

replace the existing porch canopy and external cupboard. 

 
The application follows an earlier refusal for a similar proposal which was 

refused for the following reasons: 

The proposed extension would result in a large addition to the front of the 

property that would disrupt the planned design and layout of the properties 

within Howicks Green. By extending so far beyond the dimensions of the 

current porch and store cupboard, the proposed extension would have a 

detrimental impact upon the property and wider street scene. The introduction 

of a solid front door, full glazed side panel and the smaller high level window 

are not in keeping with the immediate area and would have a detrimental 

impact upon the property. As a result, the application would fail to comply with 

Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme. 

 
In a change to the earlier refused application, this application proposes a front 

door similar to the existing, a circular window in place of the high level 

rectangular window and a small reduction in the width of the extension. 

Constraints Estate Management Scheme, as defined within the Leasehold Reform Act 
1967 

Relevant history Application Number: 6/2020/2056/HOUSE Decision: 

Decision Date: 

Proposal: Single storey front extension to replace existing porch canopy & 

external cupboard. 

 
Application Number: W6/2005/0015/EM Decision: Granted 

Decision Date: 04 March 2005 

Proposal: FORMATION OF VEHICLE HARDSTANDING 

 
Application Number: 6/2020/0448/EM Decision: Refused 

Page 23



2 of 3 
 

 Decision Date: 28 April 2020 

Proposal: Erection of a single storey front extension 

 
Application Number: 6/2020/0441/HOUSE Decision: Refused 

Decision Date: 04 May 2020 

Proposal: Erection of single storey front extension to replace existing porch 
canopy & external cupboard 

Notifications 

Neighbour 

representations 

Support: 0 Object: 0 Other: 0 

Summary of 

neighbour 

responses 

No comments received. 

Consultee 
responses 

No comments received. 

Relevant Policies 

  EM1 EM2 EM3 EM4 
  

Considerations 

Design (form, 

size, scale, siting) 

and Character 

(impact upon 

amenities and 

values of Garden 

City) 

Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme states that extensions and 

alterations to existing properties will only be allowed if they are in keeping with 

the design, appearance, materials and architectural detailing used in the 

existing building and do not have a detrimental impact on the amenities and 

values of the surrounding area or the residential amenity of adjoining 

occupiers. 

Generally, front extensions are discouraged by the Estate Management 

Scheme. Any proposal for a front extension must be considerate to the existing 

character of the property as well as the wider street scene. Key architectural 

details and materials, including fenestration, should be utilised as well as 

ensuring scale and size are proportionate. 

 The proposed front extension would replace the existing porch canopy and 

brick built store. The proposed extension would have an approximate depth of 

1.2m and an approximate width of 4.3m. The proposed extension would 

feature a flat roof and have an approximate height of 2.8m. A part glazed, part 

solid door, similar to the existing front door, and glazed side panel would be 

sited to the left of centre. A high level circular window is positioned to the right 

of centre. 

 Despite the modest reduction in width, the extension remains substantially 

larger and would extend beyond the limits of the existing porch and store. In 

addition, the proposed porch is approx. 40cm higher than the roof of the 

existing canopy. Although there are examples of circular windows on the front 

elevations of nearby houses, they are not typical of properties within Howicks 

Green and would be contrast to other properties where the side door is 

removed and replaced with a window of dimensions to match other windows 

within the property. 

 Front porches in the area that have Estate Management Consent are smaller 

and do not extend to the width of this proposal (e.g. follow the width of the 

existing canopy and store). 

 The revised proposal would result in a large addition to the front of the property 

that would disrupt the planned design and layout of the properties within 
Howicks Green. By extending beyond the dimensions of the current porch and 

 

Page 24



3 of 3 
 

 store cupboard, the proposed extension would have a detrimental impact upon 

the property and wider street scene. Although the proposed door and surround 

would remain in keeping with the surrounding existing property, the circular 

window is not a feature of dwellings in Howicks Green and would be out of 

keeping for the street. 

Impact on 

neighbours 

The proposed extension would not impact upon neighbourhood amenity in 

terms of loss of light, outlook or privacy. 

Landscaping 

issues (incl. 
hardstandings) 

None. 

Any other 
considerations 

None. 

Conclusion 

Despite the alterations to the earlier application, the proposed extension would result in a large 

addition to the front of the property that would disrupt the planned design and layout of the properties 

within Howicks Green. By extending beyond the dimensions of the current porch and store 

cupboard, the proposed extension would have a detrimental impact upon the property and wider 

street scene. The introduction of a circular window are not in keeping with the immediate area and 

would have a detrimental impact upon the property. As a result, the application would fail to comply 

with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme. 

 

 Reasons for Refusal: 
 

1.  Despite the alterations to the earlier application, the proposed extension would  

result in a large addition to the front of the property that would disrupt the planned 

design and layout of the properties within Howicks Green. By extending beyond the 

dimensions of the current porch and store cupboard, the proposed extension would 

have a detrimental impact upon the property and wider street scene. The 

introduction of a circular window is not in keeping with the immediate area and 

would have a detrimental impact upon the property. As a result, the application 

would fail to comply with Policy EM1 of the Estate Management Scheme. 

 
REFUSED DRAWING NUMBERS 

 
2.  

Plan 

Number 

 
Revision 

Number 

 
Details 

 
Received Date 

 
4884-OS1 

 
Location Plan 8 September 2020 

 
4884-OS2 A Block Plan 8 September 2020 

 
4884-P01 C 4884-P01C 8 September 2020 

 4884-E01 B 4884-E01B 8 September 2020 

 
 
 

D etermined By 

 

 

Mr James Homer 

October 2020 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2, 6a, 6b of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 47 HOWICKS GREEN, WELWYN GARDEN CITY, AL7 4RJ - 6/2020/2307/EM - SINGLE STOREY FRONT EXTENSION TO REPLACE EXISTING PORCH CANOPY AND EXTERNAL CUPBOARD
	6 - Appendix 1 - Appellants Statement
	6 - Appendix 2 - Appellants Presentation
	6 - Appendix 3 - Delegated Officer Report

	9 UPDATE ON OUTSTANDING ENFORCEMENT CASES AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ENFORCEMENT ACTION UNDER THE TERMS OF THE SCHEME OF MANAGEMENT FOR WELWYN GARDEN CITY FOR BREACHES OF THAT SCHEME



